
Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
 
Minutes of the Strategic Planning Meeting of the Riverdale City Council held Saturday, 
February 21, 2009 at 8:00 a.m. at the Riverdale Senior Center, Riverdale Utah.      
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Mayor  
   David Gibby, Councilor 
   Don Hunt, Councilor 

Shelly Jenkins, Councilor  
Gary Griffiths, Councilor 
Doug Peterson, Councilor (Participated via telephone) 

 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, Chief Administrative Officer; Steve Brooks, City Attorney; 

Lynn Moulding, Public Works Director; Randy Daily, Community 
Development Director; Doug Illum, Fire Chief; Dave Hansen, Police 
Chief; Lynn Fortie, Business Administrator; Marilyn Banasky, City 
Recorder, and 1 citizen. 

 
WELCOME 
Mayor Burrows welcomed all those present and noted that Councilor Peterson will be 
participating via telephone and that Councilor’s Gibby and Jenkins will join the meeting in 
progress. 
 
Councilors Jenkins and Gibby arrived at 8:04 a.m. 
 
SESSION OBJECTIVES 
Larry Hansen discussed the session objectives, the action plan, and scope of services.  He 
reported that this quarterly strategic planning session is preparatory to the FY10 budget 
preparation.   
 
Critical Legislative Updates 
Larry Hansen distributed a handout outlining the bills that the Utah League of Cities and Towns 
are tracking during the 2009 Legislative session and highlighted some of them that pertain to 
Riverdale.   
 
Consensus Priorities for FY 2010 Budget 
Larry Hansen reported that they will be looking at the Capital Facilities Plan to help put together 
the budget.  He stated that he is looking for consensus on what projects will go through to the 
FY10 budget and place those and other projects on the 5 year Capital Improvements Plan.  
 
FYTD 2009 FINANCIAL REVIEW – BUDGET VS. ACTUAL 
Lynn Fortie distributed a handout entitled Revenues with Comparison to budget for the 7 Months 
Ending January 31, 2009 and discussed it.  He explained that 59% of the fiscal year has elapsed 

Riverdale City 1 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 



and the handout indicates the percentage that has been spent for each budgeted item and that if 
that number is over 59%, that item is probably going to be over budget.  He stated that 75% of 
the General Fund revenues come from tax revenue and that Sales Tax revenue is down $166,000 
from last January.  He stated that the sales tax revenue numbers should increase once the Local 
Option Tax monies begin to be distributed to Riverdale and that the State should send the 
additional money to come up to the SB-35 floor amount in June.  Mr. Fortie stated that overall 
the budget looks good with regard to expenditures.  Larry Hansen stated that because of the 
decrease in the anticipated tax revenues, he is forecasting that the FY09 budget will end with a 
deficit of $325,000, but that amount needs to be adjusted for Class C Road funds.  He reported 
that the RDA funds are in excellent shape and that the RDA housing fund has just under 
$1,000,000 balance and that when they sell the property on the West Bench, the RDA will have 
approximately $1.5 million and will transfer 20% of the increment monies to the housing fund 
from the Riverdale Road and Weber River Project areas.  He stated that joining the Senior 
Facility with the housing segment was an excellent decision by the RDA Board and City 
Council.  He noted that the 20 apartments at the facility are full and that there is currently a 
waiting list of 50.  He explained that historically when there was a surplus in the General Fund, 
that money was transferred to the Capital Projects Fund until decisions are made on how to 
spend it.  He reported that the Enterprise Funds are also doing well and that the City may need to 
consider borrowing or bonding to accomplish some of the Capital Projects at this time.   
 
ACTION PLAN STATUS (FINANCIAL AND ORGANIZATIONAL) 
Larry Hansen discussed core services and their costs versus the flow of taxpayer money.  He 
discussed that the FY09 budget had a budgeted General Fund surplus transfer of $324,000.  He 
reported that as of January 31, 2009 the revenue in the following categories are anticipated to be 
less than budgeted:  

Sales tax and vehicle fees: $(130,000) 
Ambulance service:............ (160,000) 
Court fines: .......................... (60,000) 
Misc.  ................................... (10,000)
Total Shortages $(360,000) 
 
Budgeted Surplus $324,000 
Less Total Shortages $(360,000) 
Total $(36,000) 
 

Mr. Hansen reported that Riverdale has had an advantage in the past by dealing with the impacts 
of SB-35 and implementing the Action Plan coupled with the willingness of the Department 
Heads to work together to impact the bottom line to end up with a surplus.  He stated that their 
challenge is to work with the estimated $36,000 General Fund shortfall and beat it by the end of 
the fiscal year.  He asked the Department Heads to work together to close the deficit.   
 
PROJECTIONS AND USE OF .20% ADDT’L LOCAL SALES TAX 
Larry Hansen discussed Riverdale City’s Ordinance and State Law regarding the Local Option 
Sales Tax.  He reported that the Local Option Sales Tax went into effect January 1, 2009, and 
will end June 30, 2016, which is 7 ½ years.  He stated that according to State Law those funds 
must be used for the same purposes as General Fund monies, i.e. day to day expenses.  He 

Riverdale City 2 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 



explained that for decades, Riverdale has accumulated surpluses and transferred those funds to 
the Capital Projects Fund to be either spent or banked.  He reported that there are two significant 
things that they need to consider regarding the Local Option Sales Tax: 1) the .20% ends June 
30, 2016; and 2) SB-35 guarantees that Riverdale will receive $4.56 million in sales tax revenues 
as long as the total sales are below the 2005 sales levels.  Mr. Hansen stated that he has forecast 
that during the 7 ½ years that Riverdale will receive the Local Option Sales Tax, it should 
receive $10.3 million dollars in extra revenue.  He reported that at the end of the 7 years when 
the Local Option Sales Tax goes away and Riverdale should have grown out of receiving the 
floor amount for SB-35, he forecasts that for the next 7 years, from 2017 to 2024, Riverdale will 
have a deficit of $5.7 million in sales tax revenues.  He stated that taking care of some Capital 
Projects with the Local Option Sales Tax is wise but that a reasonable portion will be needed to 
sustain General Fund activity.  Councilor Griffiths stated that this is why Strategic Planning 
sessions are important and by taking this viewpoint and forecasting it out, they can make smart 
decisions.  Councilor Jenkins stated that she feels that this is a sound plan and inquired if there 
was a way to make these Strategic Planning sessions into policy so they continue on when there 
is a change of personnel.  Mr. Hansen replied that they will continue to discuss these items from 
quarterly meeting to quarterly meeting and institutionalize this process so that any of their 
replacements will know that this is the way we do it in Riverdale.   
 
The meeting recessed at 9:42 a.m. 
The meeting reconvened 10:03 a.m. 
 
REVIEW, DISCUSSION AND CONSENSUS 
Capital Facilities Plan, December 2008 (w/Consensus projects x-ref to 5-Yr CIP) 
Lynn Moulding distributed the 5 year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) as well as summary pages 
from the Capital Facilities Plan (CFP).  
 
Culinary Water Projects 
Lynn Moulding distributed an updated Culinary Water Projects page and noted that he added the 
Riverdale Road Water Main Replacement for $850,000 and that the cost for the tank 
replacements went from $2,424,000 to $1,848,000 due to the price of steel going down.  He 
reported that he did go into the water storage tank and that it doesn’t look as bad as he 
anticipated.  He stated that the floor of the tank is the worst area as it has bubbled up and that 
there is some additional corrosion on the top of the tank, but that the walls look the same as they 
did a few years ago.  He reported that he feels better about the water tanks and feels they could 
easily go another year before doing anything.  He explained that a water tank replacement should 
take about 90 days.  Mr. Moulding reported that he talked to Weber Basin Water about 
partnering with the City in the water tanks, but that they are 5-8 years out before they would be 
ready.  Mr. Hansen stated that considering borrowing and construction costs, it may be a very 
good and defensible position to do the water project now, but if the funding comes through to 
finish widening Riverdale Road they would need to go with that project.  Mr. Moulding stated 
that he thinks the Riverdale Road project will happen in the next year and that they could hold 
off on the tank for a year and see what happens.  He recommended changing the Riverdale Road 
Widening line item in the CIP from $750,000 to $850,000 in FY10.  Mayor Burrows asked for 
consensus to change the Riverdale Road Widening line item in FY2010 from $750,000 to 
$850,000.  Consenus was reached.   

Riverdale City 3 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 



 
Mr. Moulding reported that he has also discussed obtaining a loan from the State to replace the 
water tanks.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to temporarily keep the Tanks #2 & #3 
Replacement line item in the FY2010 budget at $1,848,000 and explore options during the 
tentative budget process to see where they are.  Consensus was reached.  Mr. Moulding 
reported that the rest of the items in the CFP don’t need to be put on the 5 year CIP.  Mr. Hansen 
stated that they ought to incorporate the CFP by reference to the CIP in order to keep track of the 
projects.  Mr. Moulding requested that the CIP be a 10 year plan instead of a 5 year plan.  Mr. 
Fortie stated that he would look into doing that.   
 
Sewer 
Lynn Moulding reported that if the completion of the Riverdale Road widening project happens, 
then the first four projects in the CFP need to happen in FY10 and that he feels the numbers in 
the CFP are high.  Larry Hansen suggested placing the following projects on the CIP and replace 
the $1,025,000. 

1. Riverdale Road – Rumbi Grill – New piping - $242,300 
2. Riverdale Road – Ruby River to PC Laptops – $864,200 
3. Rumbi Grill to 500 West Riverdale Road Intersection – New Piping - $59,000 
4. Del Taco to Olive Garden Building – new Piping - $307,200 

 
Mr. Moulding stated that he feels good about the $1,025,000 number as UDOT said it should 
work, if we do the projects in FY2010.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to add the four 
Riverdale Road projects from the CFP to the CIP.  Consensus was reached.  Mr. Moulding 
reported he thinks that #6 on the CFP South Weber Drive – Pipe Liner should be on the 5 year 
CIP.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to move the South Weber Drive line item from 
FY2009 to FY2011, change the amount to $139,900 and eliminate the $100,000 in FY2009.  
Consensus was reached.  Mr. Moulding reported that #5 on the CFP: 4400 South Street – 
Colonial Gardens to 700 West Street - New Piping is a high priority and that he feels it is a risk 
as the pipe that has some breaks and wasn’t installed properly.  He noted that because the pipe 
has been cleaned regularly there hasn’t been any problems.  He stated that this project could stay 
on the CIP for FY2010 or be pushed back to FY2011.  He asked that if the City was going to 
bond, he would like to see this project as part of it.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to 
move the 4400 S. Sanitary Sewer Upgrade – Parker to 700 W. on the CIP from FY2010 to 
FY2011 and change the amount to $500,000.  Consensus was reached.  Mr. Moulding 
reported that the rest of the sewer projects in the CFP could be completed anytime in the future 
and that some of the projects near the bottom of the list may not need to be done and are just 
being watched.  He stated that they have looked at all of the sewers that were built prior to 1980 
and that anything that was built after 1980 hasn’t been looked at yet, so there may be other 
projects to be put on the list in the future.   
 
Storm Water 
Lynn Moulding reported that the most important storm water projects are on 4400 South as it has 
a corrugated pipe that is rusting through in spots.  He stated that they did replace a small segment 
of the pipe last year and that the timing of the pipe replacement should be coordinated with the 
sewer project.  He suggested moving the $700,000 for 4400 S Stormwater Upgrade – Parker 
Drive to 700 W in the CIP, from FY2010 to FY2011 and change the amount from $700,000 to 

Riverdale City 4 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 



$1,232,500, which is the amount of projects 1 and 2 on the CFP.  He also suggested that they do 
an overlay on 700 West to the Weber River.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to move the 
$700,000 for 4400 S Stormwater Upgrade – Parker Drive to 700 W in the CIP, from 
FY2010 to FY2011 and change the amount from $700,000 to $1,232,500, which is the 
amount of projects 1 and 2 on the CFP.  Consensus was reached.  Mr. Moulding reported that 
the rest of the projects on the CFP can be done at anytime.  Larry Hansen stated that he would 
like to see the CIP show projects for 10 years and asked Mr. Moulding to place his other projects 
on it over the 10 year spread.   
 
CDBG 
Lynn Moulding stated that Riverdale did not receive any CDBG funding and suggested moving 
the projects from FY2010 to FY2011 and reapplying.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to 
move the CDBG projects from FY2010 to FY2011.  Consensus was reached.   
 
City Administration 
Larry Hansen reported that the line item for Land purchase at $300,000 will probably not take 
place in FY2010.   
 
Fire 
Fire Chief Doug Illum reported that they didn’t get the grant for the extraction equipment for 
$27,000 or the Air Pack Replacement grant for $140,000.  He stated that he is going to reapply 
for the grant for the Air Pack Replacement and suggested moving that amount from FY2009 to 
FY2010.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to move the $140,000 for Air Pack 
Replacement from FY2009 to FY2010.  Consensus was reached.   
 
Parks  
Larry Hansen discussed the Playfields south of Civic Center line item and suggested shifting the 
$500,000 amounts in FY2010, FY2011 and FY2012 out one year.  Mayor Burrows asked for 
consensus to shift the $500,000 amounts in FY2010, FY2011 and FY2012 out one year each.  
Consensus was reached.   
 
Streets 
Lynn Moulding reported that he feels they should do a traffic study this summer regarding 
installing a roundabout at 4400 S and 700 W, as the widening of Riverdale Road and the addition 
of the two left turn lanes has helped the traffic flow.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to 
move the Roundabout at 4400 S. 700 W. line item for $350,000 from FY2010 to FY2011.  
Consensus was reached.   
 
NEW DEPARTMENT OPERATION ISSUES & INITIATIVES 
Police – Strike Force Participation 
Police Chief Dave Hansen reported that he asked for an additional officer during the last 
Strategic Planning meeting to be put on the Strike Force.  He explained that Riverdale used to 
rotate out a Police Officer with two other cities, who now have permanent officers on the Strike 
Force.  He reported that Riverdale pulled their officer out and currently pays $4,000 per year to 
the Strike Force instead of supplying an officer.  Chief Hansen stated that last year the Strike 
Force asked if Riverdale could rotate in an officer with North Ogden and Washington Terrace, 

Riverdale City 5 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 



who contracts with the Weber County Sheriff’s office.  He explained that an agreement was 
worked out that the three cities would each rotate in an officer to the Strike Force for two years 
and that it is now Riverdale’s turn as North Ogden has had an officer in for the last three years.  
Chief Hansen stated he realizes that this is a budget issue and discussed options with his Police 
Officers and they agreed to pull an officer from patrol instead of asking to hire an additional 
officer to go to the Strike Force, but that he would like the option to come back before the Mayor 
and City Council to ask for help if things get tough.  Councilor Gibby inquired if they put in a 
current full time officer to be on the Strike Force, if they should look into hiring a part-time 
officer to help.  Chief Hansen replied that could be an option to consider as his concern is that 
they will run into problems and be short on manpower when an officer calls in sick or goes to 
training and that it is hard to schedule vacation.  Larry Hansen reported that there are two key 
factors to consider: 1) sales tax revenues, and 2) obtaining an Interlocal Agreement.  Mayor 
Burrows stated that he has asked for an Interlocal Agreement to be drawn up and approved.  
Larry Hansen stated that based on this mornings discussion, he appreciates that the Police 
Officers are willing to give it a try to make it work without hiring a new officer, but that he 
doesn’t want a feeling of compulsion other than the spirit of cooperation and if they need to 
bring it back to the Mayor and Council, that it can be re-looked at.  Fire Chief Doug Illum 
reported that he has concerns that the police force would be short handed to help the Fire 
Department when needed and that the Fire Department would be supportive of getting another 
officer.  Chief Hansen replied that he thinks it will be manageable but wants the opportunity to 
bring it back if it doesn’t work.  Mayor Burrows stated that he wants to leave the money in the 
FY2010 budget and give it a try.  Larry Hansen stated that when they draft the tentative budget 
they will figure in the cost for an additional officer.  Councilor Gibby suggested looking at the 
possibility of using volunteers as the eyes and ears of the police department, in particular in code 
enforcement.  Chief Hansen reported that he is looking at that possibility and the ramifications of 
having volunteers driving cars and the liability that could bring to the City.  Mayor Burrows 
stated that they will explore these options and bring them back during the budget process.   
 
SEWER RATES 
Larry Hansen reported that these rates were discussed during a previous City Council meeting 
and that there was the feeling to increase them a smaller amount and then re-look at them.  He 
stated that they increased the sewer rates from $8.50 per month to $11.02 per month.  Mr. 
Moulding stated that increase just covered the increased cost from Central Weber Sewer for this 
year.  Mr. Hansen inquired if they wanted to budget a sewer increase for FY2010.  Mr. Moulding 
replied that they are just breaking even as far as sewer revenue, and feels that in order to cover 
the increased cost to Central Weber Sewer and building costs that the rates should be raised.  He 
indicated that if they went to the State for monetary help, they may require us to raise the rates 
anyway.  Councilor Gibby stated that he would rather raise them a little at a time rather than a 
big rate increase.  Mr. Moulding stated that he needed $19.00 per month cover the rate increase 
over time. Mr. Hansen suggested splitting the difference between $11.00 and $19.00 and budget 
a $15.00 per month rate.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to draft the tentative budget 
by splitting the difference from the $11 and $19 sewer rate and then discuss it further in 
May.  Consensus was reached.    
 
The meeting recessed at 11:40 a.m. for lunch.   
The meeting reconvened at 12:27 p.m.   

Riverdale City 6 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 



 
GARBAGE RECYCLING 
Larry Hansen reported that in light of the economy and the fact that mandatory recycling would 
work best, he stated that they need some discussion to see if the Mayor and City Council want to 
implement a recycling program and if so, how soon.  He noted that there are currently dumpsters 
around the City and in other places that take recyclables.  Councilor Jenkins stated that she 
thinks there would be off-set costs for residents with a second garbage can, and as much as she 
supports recycling, she doesn’t know how they can increase rates right now.  Mr. Moulding 
replied that the number of residents who have two or three garbage cans it is not that great and 
wouldn’t off set the cost by much and that he doesn’t think it is a good time to implement it.  
Larry Hansen stated that it might be better to let this one sit for a year.  Councilor Hunt reported 
that he receives phone calls on both sides of the issue regarding recycling and agrees that raising 
rates of any kind right now is not a good idea.  Mayor Burrows reported that there are a number 
of cities who are implementing recycling programs and feels that waiting at least a year is a great 
idea.  Mr. Hansen inquired if they wanted to put an article in the newsletter outlining the City’s 
rationale regarding recycling.  Councilor Hunt replied that he feels they should communicate it 
with the residents.  Councilor Jenkins inquired if they could step up areas for central recycling.  
Mayor Burrows replied that the contamination factor is huge at those sites, but perhaps they 
could work with the PTA at Riverdale Elementary School to police the recycling dumpsters in 
the new parking lot by the school.  Councilor Jenkins indicated that this could be a first step to 
see if the community wants to separate their trash.  Mayor Burrows stated that he will talk to the 
school to see if they are interested.  Councilor Griffiths stated that he has seen some recycle 
centers and when they are not maintained, they are eyesores.  He wondered what types of 
problems they would be creating by accumulating that type of material and thinks there could be 
a lot contamination and spend a lot of money to be putting additional recycling bins out there.  
He suggested putting a survey in the newsletter or on the website regarding recycling, but 
doesn’t think it is the time to start a mandatory recycling program.   
 
RAMP PROJECTS/CDBG PROJECTS 
Riverdale Park Restroom 
Lynn Moulding inquired if the City doesn’t receive any RAMP funding, then do they want to 
move ahead with any of the outlined projects anyway.  Larry Hansen reported that the Riverdale 
Park restroom really needs updating as the usage is high and that the project could be financed 
through the .20% Local Option Sales Tax monies.  Mayor Burrows stated that he thinks it needs 
to be done and be kept high on the priority list.  Mr. Hansen stated that since the City is not 
going to spend the budgeted $300,000 for Land Acquisition in FY2009 perhaps they could shift 
some of that money into next years budget for the restroom.  Mr. Moulding reported that 
Engineer’s cost estimate is $216,000 to build a bigger restroom at Riverdale Park.  Mayor 
Burrows asked for consensus to put $250,000 in FY2010 for the Riverdale Park Restroom 
Replacement if the RAMP funds don’t come through.  Consensus was reached.    
 
Splash Pad 
Mr. Moulding stated that he is looking to place the splash pad at the North end of Riverdale Park 
and that $300,000 is a good number if the RAMP funds come through.  He reported that he is 
planning on treating and recycling the water for the splash pad.  
 

Riverdale City 7 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 



STREETS & ROADS PROJECTS 
1500 West Connection to Ritter Drive. 
Larry Hansen stated that the property acquisition for the 1500 West road extension will be under 
contract Monday and that they should have access to the property within 45 days.   
 
1050 West & Riverdale Road Island Design 
Lynn Moulding distributed a handout showing different monument signs that could be used in 
this area and stated that he feels a lower sign would be a better fit at this location.  Councilor 
Jenkins stated that she likes the branding idea and would like to make it similar to the current 
Welcome to Riverdale signs.  Councilor Gibby suggested putting the river next to the words 
instead of stacking them.  Mr. Moulding reported that he was thinking of placing the monument 
sign in the middle of stamped cement surrounded by seven pockets of landscaping.  He stated 
that UDOT may not want to do the stamped concrete, but thinks that they will pay for everything 
but the monument.  Mayor Burrows asked for consensus to look at a low profile sandstone 
sign and use the horizontal Riverdale logo.  Consensus was reached.   
 
OTHER ITEMS 
Larry Hansen reported that the City has reserved the Roy Aquatic Park for six nights this 
summer for residents to use free of charge.  He stated that Councilor Peterson suggested 
partnering with Roy City to allow Riverdale residents to purchase passes at the Roy Complex at 
the Roy resident rate and have Riverdale City pay the difference.  Mr. Hansen reported that a 
monthly pass is $25 for residents and non residents pay $30 and that if the City received a 10% 
discount, the cost to the City would be $2.00 per pass.  He reported that he has discussed this 
idea with the Roy City Administrator and that the Mayors have also been talking and that they 
sounded positive.  Mayor Burrows reported that the Roy Aquatic Center is near capacity but that 
they have a lot of capacity at the Complex.  He inquired if the Council, even at full price would 
like to consider this idea and include it in the budget.  Councilor Gibby stated that this is a good 
idea and maybe the discounts could be on a first come, first served basis, until the money runs 
out.  Councilor Jenkins inquired if the ten punch pass would also be available at a discounted rate 
to Riverdale residents.  Mayor Burrows stated that was not one of the options but that he will 
check to see if it can be included.  Mr. Hansen suggested checking with Roy and see how many 
passes they are selling and come up with a number for the budget.   
 
Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 1:15 p.m. 
 
Attest:       Approved:    March 3, 2009 
 
 
_____________________________                          _________________________________ 
Marilyn Banasky, City Recorder   Bruce Burrows, Mayor  

Riverdale City 8 February 21, 2009 Strategic Planning 


